

Contents

Contents	2
Employer-set project assessment	3
Assessment objectives	3
Coverage of core skills	4
Employer-set project mark distribution	5
General marking approach	6
Marking grids	8
Task 1.1 – Research	8
Task 1.2 - Project Initiation Document	12
Task 1.3 – Project planning	15
Task 1.4 – Presentation	20
Task 2.1 – Collaborative Problem solving	26
Task 2.2 – Evaluation	29

Employer-set project assessment

Assessment objectives

The employer-set project is assessed against five assessment objectives. The assessment objectives are mapped against each task within the marking grids:

	Assessment Objective
AO1	Plan their approach to meeting the project brief
AO2	Apply core knowledge and skills as appropriate
AO2a	o core knowledge
AO2b	o core skills
	 i) business and commercial awareness e.g. conducting a PESTLE analysis to inform a change project ii) project management e.g. planning, managing and evaluating a project
	 using appropriate tools and methodologies iii) communication e.g., providing information and advice, undertaking presentations of information
	- iiii) work collaboratively with other team members and stakeholders e.g., to identify solutions to problems
	 v) applying a logical approach to solving problems, using analysis of advantages and disadvantages, identifying issues and proposing solutions vi) undertaking research e.g., obtaining information/data through different forms of research, meeting requirements of a defined brief
	 vii) reflective practice e.g., reviewing performance and own behaviours, identifying ways for improvement and supporting delivery of quality outcomes
AO3	Select relevant techniques and resources to meet the brief
AO4	Use maths, English and digital skills as appropriate
• AO4a	o maths
• AO4b	o English
• AO4c	o digital
AO5	Realise a project outcome and review how well the outcome meets the brief
• AO5a	o realise a project outcome – was the right outcome achieved
• AO5b	o review how well the outcome meets the brief, how well was the brief met, the quality of the outcome in relation to the brief

8715-033 3

Coverage of core skills

The following table indicates how the different tasks within the Employer set project target each of the core skills.

Task number	Task	Core skills targeted
1.1	Investigate the project brief	i) Business context/commercial awarenessv) Applying a logical approach to problem-solvingvi) Undertaking research
1.2	Project Initiation Document	ii) Project management
1.3	Project Planning	ii) Project management
1.4	Presentation	iii) Communication
2.1	Collaborative problem solving	iii) Communication iiii) Working collaboratively with others v) Applying a logical approach to problem-solving
2.2	Evaluation	vii) Reflective practice

Maths, English and digital skills

The following table outlines where maths, English and digital skills competencies have been incorporated into the assessment tasks.

Task 1.1 Investigate the	Maths's skills					
project brief	MC2 - Estimating, calculating and error spotting					
	MC5 - Processing data					
	MC6 - Understanding data and risk					
	MC8 - Communicating using mathematics					
	MC9 - Costing a project					
	MC10 - Optimising work processes					
Task 1.3 Project planning	Maths's skills					
	MC6 - Understanding data and risk					
	MC8 - Communicating using mathematics					
	MC9 - Costing a project					
	MC10 - Optimising work processes					
Task 1.4 Presentation	Digital skills					
	DC1 - Use digital technology and media effectively					
	DC2 - Design, create and edit documents and digital media					
	DC3 - Communicate and collaborate					
	English skills					
	EC1 - Convey technical information to different audiences					
	EC2 - Present information and ideas					
	EC3 - Create texts for different purposes and audiences					
	EC4 - Summarise information/ideas					
	EC5 - Synthesise information					
	EC6 - Take part in/lead discussions					

8715-033 4

Employer-set project mark distribution

This table illustrates how the 100 marks for the employer-set project are distributed against the tasks and mapped to each assessment objective. These have been set by subject matter experts and employers and will support the comparability between versions of the employerset project over time.

Tasks	AO1	AO2a	AO2b	AO3	AO4a	AO4b	AO4c	AO5a	AO5b	Total
				Р	art 1					
1.1 Investigate the project brief	2	6	6	4	2	0	0	0	0	20
1.2 Project Initiation	4	3	6	4	0	0	0	0	0	17
1.3 Project planning	3	4	4	4	2	0	0	0	0	17
1.4 Presentation	0	3	6	0	0	6	4	0	0	19
Total	9	16	22	12	4	6	4	0	0	73
				Р	art 2					
2.1 Collaborative problem-solving	3	3	6	0	0	0	0	0	0	12
2.2 Evaluation	0	0	3	0	0	0	0	6	6	15
Total	3	3	9	0	0	0	0	6	6	27
AO (%)	12	5	0	12	14			1	100	

5

General marking approach

The following process details at high level the steps that will be undertaken by the external marking teams at City & Guilds following the submission of candidate's submitted evidence (including additional supporting evidence such as videos of presentations etc.).

Guidance

Markers of this assessment should note

- that candidate evidence must be marked based on what has been submitted. This
 means that if candidate evidence is not complete, marks will only be based on what has
 been submitted.
- any additional commentary on centre-provided forms in relation to any additional support or guidance provided to candidates as part of the assessment process. The level of support or guidance provided should be considered as a factor as part of the marking process.
- that the marking grids follow two slightly different approaches.
 - some of the task-based marking grids focus on a single targeted assessment objective. For these mark grids, the band descriptors have been written in direct response to the individual assessment objective. Markers will consider all of the descriptor statements presented in each marking band as a whole, in order to determine how the candidate has evidenced demonstration of the assessment objective within the specific task.
 - o some of the task-based marking grids incorporate coverage of multiple assessment objectives. This has been done where there is clear alignment between the objectives in the task and aims to support markers to bring together and assess the available evidence. For these mark grids, the assessment objectives being assessed have been incorporated into the band descriptors, so in the same way as above, markers should focus on how the evidence demonstrated reflects the collective descriptor statements in each band, which should be read as a whole to form an overall judgement.
- Regardless of which of the above two approaches that the marking grids take, as the band descriptors incorporate the assessment objectives that each is intending to assess, markers should follow the guidance on marking without any specific need to consider the assessment objectives - i.e., considering the evidence and marks available as a whole and base their judgement on the quality of response and how it meets the overall band descriptors (see Process below).
- that if candidates make an error or display a weakness in one task that is further compounded through the inter-dependent nature of the tasks and carry through that error, the marker should penalise the candidate only once. Each task should be considered within the constraints of the marking for the task itself, focusing on the knowledge and skills to be demonstrated in that task. For example, if a candidate identifies a less than optimal technology solution in task (1.1), when they get to the presentation task (1.4) where the solution is presented the marker should focus on looking at how well the candidate presents the solution they are proposing, i.e., it is the presentation and communication skills that should be the key focus of the assessment of the task, rather than further penalising the candidate for carrying forward a less than optimal technology solution from initial task (1.1). Candidates can also use evaluation within later task responses to address issues they have identified.

8715-033 6

Process

Check the evidence

- Marker checks the marking requirements by referring to the 'Guidance for markers' section of the marking grid(s) for the task and confirming the evidence that should be used to assess that task.
- Marker scans / reads the body of candidate evidence, and carefully considers the band descriptors that reflect each mark band. The descriptors within each band have been broken down to support readability – but should be considered collectively during the marking process.
 - **Note,** the entire body of evidence for the task and how it relates to the AOs within each marking grid for the task should be considered as a 'whole' when reviewing the candidate evidence.
- Initial assessment Marker first makes an assessment of the best fit to band taking
 into account the Indicative Content section which details typical evidence that may be
 produced for that task

Note: indicative content has been provided to help orient the marking, providing a sense of the intentions of the task evidence and expected parameters of the response. It is not exhaustive, and candidates do not need to cover all points referenced.

Confirm the band

Marker reviews the body of candidate evidence against the initial band descriptor selected in more detail to confirm if the response is securely sitting within the band, i.e., all characteristics described by the band descriptor are seen or it strongly meets the level of performance described by the descriptor holistically

- Marker will also check the descriptor for the level above
- If evidence clearly shows some of the characteristics of the band above, the marker will select a suitable mark at the bottom of that band
- If not showing characteristics of the higher band the marker will revert to the original band, selecting a mark at the higher end of that mark range

If the response is not securely in the band, but *is partially* showing the characteristics of the band

- Marker will check the descriptor of the level below/above
- Maker will decide on a suitable mark either towards the bottom of the original band as some characteristics shown, or top of the band below if it better describes the quality of the characteristics being shown

If there is no alignment with the descriptor, the marker will reassess the starting band, and begin again.

Confirm the mark within the band

Where there are a range of marks per band, the marker will confirm a final mark based on the level of alignment with the descriptor, bearing in mind the marks available form an evenly distributed scale:

- If the quality of response fully aligns with the performance described by the descriptor – the marker will assign a high mark within the band
- If the quality of the response partially aligns with the performance described by the descriptor – the marker will assign a low to medium mark within the band depending on the range of marks available
- The marker will consider the quality of a range of similar responses (e.g., annotated lead grade exemplification materials, responses reviewed during standardisation, and through experience) and choose a mark that would give an appropriate ranking amongst those responses in relation to the full range of marks available in each band.

8715-033

Marking grids

Task 1.1 – Investigate the project brief

Indicative content

Typical evidence may include:

Content

- Details of voluntary sector research and potential PESTLE factors driving the need for digital engagement and innovation within it. Typical PESTLE factors are political, economic, socio-cultural, technological, legal and environmental.
- Consideration of relevant technology in relation to the business need including details of technology and social media trends: Cloud platforms, social media platforms, AI, CRM systems. Other considerations, for example, how these may be sourced charity partner suppliers and others.
- Consideration of the comparative impact of the proposed options on all stakeholders, including considering people management within the charity organisation.
- Cost-benefit analysis advantages and disadvantages of each proposed digital technology solution, consideration of potential risks or 'red flags' that are weighted and how these are mitigated for each technology solution indication of potential future issues or tangible and intangible benefits of each digital technology inclusion into the charity organisation.
- Assessment of financial viability of different options as part of cost-benefit calculations.
- Projects where technologies have been used successfully or have been considered and the benefits of their use in those contexts. Legislation and regulations that would directly or indirectly impact on the selected digital technology e.g. health and safety, training requirements, reporting, data policies and procedures, budget control.
- Detailed options for solution. Consideration of grant funding for the charity organisation.
- List of sources or referenced materials.

- Collated information and resources from research undertaken.
- Use of decision-making matrix for comparing possible options and their advantages and disadvantages.
- Undertaking a cost-benefit analysis and application to the brief Payback (ROI) Calculations are set out and all workings shown.
- Use of risk analysis and application to the brief, considering risk mitigation.
- Consideration of wider options, including details of information that would be required but has not yet been possible to source.

Guidance for markers

The following evidence must be used to assess performance against this task.

- PESTLE analysis
- Research outcomes summary table
- Cost vs. benefit analysis highlighting the best solution.

given		available
Investigate the project brief Some evidence of a planned approach to research, though this may not always be followed in a logical order and show limited attempt at collating information. Some areas of the brief are researched, but findings may be limited. Findings are not always captured clearly and may not always relate directly to the brief. There is some evidence of the use of relevant techniques and resources used, but with limited sources considered. Resources selected provide limited support for the planning of research in response to Some evidence of a planned approach to research and collation of information is clearly planned and organised. Research has been undertaken logically i.e. flows from one area of research to another and covers most of the areas outlined by the brief. Findings from each area are clearly captured, and mostly relevant to the brief. Evidence of a range of relevant techniques and resources used and referenced, with different sources considered. Suitable resources are selected and used to support the planning of research in response to the brief most of the	tion led, ach. ering approach s of the are clearly of and and appared to s that he brief of non- selected	6

Note: where there is insufficient evidence to award a mark, a zero mark may be given	Band 1 des	and 1 descriptor Band 2 descriptor				otor	AO	Total marks available
Task 1.1	1	2	3	4	5	6	AO2a	6
Investigate the project brief	specifically evice research under Comprehension knowledge may show some mister relation to brief Technical accuration of the comprehension of the comprehens	n of core y have gaps or sunderstanding in requirements. Iracy is limited. Je is demonstrated sals but shows cies. There are s to justify and nents, but with naccuracies in ncepts explained may not always be	project brief. Son are evident betwee core knowledge. mostly technically Core knowledge through proposal accurate. Judger with some detailed reasoning through	research are detailed in ant elements of the me connections een elements of The response is y accurate. is demonstrated is and is mostly ments are logical ed lines of	through research useffectively take into elements of the processor Connections betwee core knowledge existengthen analysis understanding. The consistently technic	o account the oject brief. een elements of oploited to so and demonstrate eresponse is cally accurate. demonstrated and opposals and is ate. Judgements oppose the oppose of the oppose		

Note: where there is insufficient evidence to award a mark, a zero mark may be given	Band 1 de	scriptor	Band 2 de	scriptor	Band 3 d	escriptor	Band 4 descriptor		AO	Total marks available
Task 1.1	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	AO2b AO4a	8
Investigate the project brief	undertaken, voutcomes ide Information g basic, with a PESTLE ana conducted. C	athering is basic lysis ost benefit are attempted, emonstration thodology, calculations ed evidence	Research is with some outlearly identiful Information glimited and in PESTLE and conducted in Cost benefit are mostly with correct mostly demosome errors evident. Some analysis is cobased on find	athering is cludes a lysis some detail. calculations ell-attempted, nethodology instrated, and in calculation e basic anducted	Research is undertaken detailed, wi outcomes of identified at accurately Information is detailed at includes a PESTLE ar Cost beneficalculations completed correct met with minor calculation Detailed an conducted findings.	and is th clearly nd referenced. gathering and detailed halysis. It s are using the hodology, errors in evident. halysis is	Systematic are comprehensive conducted, we coherently an referenced. Information gromprehensive includes a comprehensive includes a completed accurate and with fully calculations. I level of analy conducted batter findings with rationale and for conclusions.	ve research ith outcomes id accurately athering is ve and imprehensive ysis. Cost ations are curately methodology accurate A detailed sis is sed on clear justifications		

Task 1.2 - Project Initiation Document

Indicative content

Typical evidence may include:

Content

- Details of project management information to aid the co-ordination of resources to plan a project within time and resource constraints and to meet required compliance and governance framework for the charity sector.
- Detail of project management phases and consideration of the co-ordination of resources to plan the project within time and resource constraints, including consideration of who to involve and when, i.e., internal key stakeholders in the charity organisation as well as consideration of external stakeholders.
- Consideration of information to consider the scope of the project and pre-determine project aims and objectives, the intended task, or identified problem without exceeding time, cost and quality constraints.
- Identification of key project deliverables, including format and target completion date for each deliverable or project stage.
- Identifying impacts of opportunities/threats implementing the proposed technology solution e.g., legal, ethical in relation to the charity sector, financial in relation to the details provided in the project brief.
- Consideration of risk, including details and risk mitigation evidence for each risk. Types of risk may include further loss of revenue for
 the charity organisation if the technology solution is not implemented, lack of stakeholder engagement, financial concerns in terms of
 budget constraints, making organisational change smooth for internal and external stakeholders using the new technology solution,
 risk to public image of the charity if the technology is not implemented and used effectively by stakeholders when engaging with
 donors and via social media.
- Consideration of timescales in the project and how these will be met using recognised project management and/or time management tools.
- Consideration of budget outlined in the project and how this will be maintained and regularly checked.
- Consideration of how the project will be evaluated and quality managed to measure project outcomes against project objectives and aims.

- Produce a PID document.
- Evidence of planning skills in the production of the PID together with the ability to identify and deploy appropriate tools and methodologies.
- Evidence of effective information skills in the production of the PID tailored to the audience in line with the business need and project brief.

Guidance for markers

The following evidence must be used to assess performance against this task.

• Project initiation document

Note: where there is insufficient evidence to award a mark, a zero mark may be given	descriptor				Band 3 de	escriptor	Band 4 d	escriptor	AO	Total marks available
Task 1.2	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	AO1	8
Project initiation document	planned meeting brief but order, or and struct approach meeting requirem. There is justificati selection technique (e.g., hur requirem financials and approach and approach the most	limited on for the of es, resources man resource tents, s), methods, roaches to be the choices e not always a effective or atte for the	Approach to the project are of information organised, with attempt to fol structure. The mostly meets requirements Techniques a resource (e. resource requirements), meaning approaches a respond to the requirements detail used to they meet the brief. The charamostly ac appropriate for prescribed princers.	and collation is clearly with some low a grapproach of the brief. and/or graph surrements, withous and selected vailable e brief with some project brices made courate and or the	information is clearly organ follows a def The approach requirements. Selection of resources (e resource requirements), mapproaches and are approaches supported wijustifications meet the pro	nd collation of s detailed and hised and hised and hised and hised are structure. It meets the sof the brief. It echniques, high high high high high high high hig	project and information evidence of and thoroug following a structure. B considered planning for There is a c justified approaches (resource re financials), approaches project brief made are thaccurate and and thorough the second of the sec	p planning for the collation of shows clear a methodical gh approach, comprehensive rief requirements throughout the project. detailed and fully broach to the techniques, e.g., human quirements, methods and to meeting the f. The choices he most effective, and appropriate for bed project brief.	AO3	

Note: where there is insufficient evidence to award a mark, a zero mark may be given	Band 1 d	lescripto	Band 2 descriptor Band 3 descriptor					AO	Total marks available		
Task 1.2	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	AO2a	9
Project Initiation document	basic detail evidence or in collating the project clearly plan relation to the provided by may not alway not alway not alway project initial. Most elements specifically project initial. Compreher may have of misunderst requirement fully meet to the project initial compreher may have of the project initial compreher may ha	Is. There is f a consider information task, but the ned. Basic the project is ut lacks convays relate evidenced ation documnsion of corgaps or should and doe to the appliare used to ject scopin or inaccurath at may not to the appliant of the appliant of inaccurath at may not the second of the test of the appliant of inaccurath at may not the appliant of inaccuration at the appliant of the appliant of inaccuration at the appliant of the appliant	red approach relating to his may not be information in its largely herence and fully to the knowledge through the hent. The knowledge we some elation to brief is not always quirements.	of informatic organised. In that a logical adopted. The related clear clear and concept of the content of the c	approach to on is clearly here is son approach e informationly to the problement. The dege is special applied tion docume elements of the some of the some of the sect scoping as from reserved through programments and thensive linearoughout the son on the sect scoping and the sect scoping are used to ect scoping as from reserved through programments and the sect scoping and the sect scoping and the sect scoping are used through programments and the sect scoping and the sect scoping are used to the sect scoping and the sect scoping are used to the sect scoping and the sect scoping are used to the sect scoping and the sect scoping are used to the s	the collation planned and ne evidence has been on provided is oject and is cifically through the ent in relation the project ne brief cation of core justify and carch are project re logical es of	The approace information is presents a cland plan that project. The lis compreher project, with explanations. Core knowled and applied of project initiated linking element the brief. Thorough an application of exploited to see demonstrate project scopillinks from reset through the pand are accurant link effective.	t of a comprehe th to the collation is logical and effe ear and organis is effectively lin level of informat nsive in its linkay coherent rational provided on app dge is evidence consistently thro ion document, e ents of the project frequirements. In d detailed links of core knowledge strengthen argur understanding to understanding to understanding to search are demonstrate. Judgemen ctively to the prove lines of reaso	n of ective and led approach laked to the licion provided ges to the lale and proach. If effectively oughout the leffectively cut brief to left are left and lateral document lats are logical liject brief with	AO2b	

Task 1.3 - Project planning

Indicative content

Typical evidence may include:

Content

- Details of the co-ordination of resources within the project, considering time and resource constraints and including key stakeholders appropriately.
- Information to pre-determine project goals, objectives and SMART targets, the intended task, or identified solution without exceeding time, cost and quality constraints.
- Consideration of project deliverables for the proposed technology solution
- Consideration of the impact of the proposed technology solution e.g., legal, ethical in relation to the charity sector, financial in relation to the details provided in the project brief.
- Consideration of stakeholder management and communication plan for internal and external key stakeholders involved in or impacted by the proposed implementation of the technology solution.
- Identification of a project schedule to ensure project goals and objectives are met, including specific project timelines, actions at each stage to ensure the project is kept on track, and clear awareness of risk associated with each stage.
- Consideration of budget allowances and restraint included into the project schedule to highlight key stages where the budget needs to be closely monitored and detailing an evaluation of budget after project milestones and deliverables have been achieved to check whether budget was maintained throughout.
- Consideration of the qualitative and quantitative indicators against which the project can be evaluated including details of this in a resource support plan for the project.
- Identification of a risk management plan using the identified risks and evidence of mitigations of each risk from the Project Initiation document in Task 1.2.
- Identification of the need for evaluation, and the evaluation stage of the project embedded into the project plan after completion of key project objectives and deliverables.
- Demonstrate awareness of organisational learning for the life of the project and beyond and detail how an evaluation method can be utilised to ensure that this key stage is completed to assist the charity organisation with future projects.

- Produce a project plan-on-a-page which summarises all project information and aims to meet the project brief and business need, as well as showing potential for evaluation and how these feed into future improvements.
- Use and application of maths in timing calculations / critical path analysis calculations are set out and all formulas used are shown.

- Methods, tools and processes available to plan project deliverables.
- Methods used to manage the project tasks and responsibilities including critical path/timescales.
- Methods and process for identifying and allocating resources.
- Stakeholder management, communication methods and processes.
- · Identification of and management of risks.
- Evidence of planning and managing skills in the production of the project plan-on-a-page together with the ability to identify and deploy appropriate tools and methodologies.

Guidance for markers

The following evidence must be used to assess performance against this task.

- Project plan on a page
- Written summary

Note, where guidance has been provided on an approximate word count for the written summary, this is for guidance to learners only. There is not a requirement to award marks based on the word count, but instead the response should be marked based on the quality of response.

Note: where there is insufficient evidence to award a mark, a zero mark may be given	Band 1 d	11 descriptor Band 2 descriptor Band 3 descriptor						AO	Total marks available		
Task 1.3	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	AO1	9
Project planning	There is a planning, w				There is clear evidence of planning with consideration				pproach to ence of a	AO3	
	considerati				equence of		comprehe shows cor	planning with evidence of a comprehensive plan that shows considered and effective sequencing.			
	A basic attorical calculate to alculate to alculate to attempt is I determining needed to and to meeded deadlines. Selection of resources a provides a to the brief. The choice limited according to the brief.	ask timin uracy. The limited in general to the time complete et overall and metal limited requirer es made	gs with he e tasks, ques, nods esponse nents. show	accurately applied, s flow to me Selection resources accurate t requireme made are supported	ngs have been calculated thowing an electrowerall do of technique and methodo respond to the control of the chappropriate with some and to meet the control of the chappropriate with some and the control of the chappropriate with some and the control of the chappropriate with some and the chappropriate with some and the chappropriate with some and the chappropriate and the chappropriate with some and the chappropriate and the chappropria	and effective eadlines. es, ds are o the brief oices e and	Task timir accurately applied, we consider a maximise support proconsistent achieving. Selection resources a detailed response requirement made are appropriating iustified to	v calculate vith effect vith effect vith effect vith effect vith effect vith efficiencial vith efficiencial vith effect vith e	ed and ive wn to es and to n, whilst fectively eadlines. ques, hods show fied he brief choices and e fully		

Note: where there is insufficient evidence to award a mark, a zero mark may be given	Band 1 descriptor	r	Band 2 des	criptor	Band 3 de	scriptor	Band 4 des	criptor	AO	Total marks available
Task 1.3	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	AO2a	8
Project planning	Limited evide core knowled core skills drand evidence proposed plademonstrate comprehensiknowledge a skills in relative requirements response shelimited use of accuracy. Limited links application of knowledge a skills are use support judgibut reasoning always clear accurate with requirements brief not alway considered.	dge and awn on ed through an- but limited ion of core ion to brief is. The ows f technical to the f core ed to ements, g is not and in the is of the	Some evidence knowledge and specifically evidence through propose comprehension knowledge and is mostly evidenave shown somisunderstand relation to brief requirements. The response shown use of technical some links to application of a knowledge and are used to just support judger with some gap inaccuracies in with requirements brief not always considered.	d core skills denced sed plan - n of core d core skills ent but may ome gaps or ling in f The vs some al accuracy. the core d core skills stify and nents, but s or n reasoning ents of the	Thorough ever core knowled core skills and applied and of through propin relation to elements of property and through line application of knowledge as skills are used and supporting proping and are accurately applied from are demonstrated through proping and are accurately applied from are demonstrated are accurately applied from a considered.	Ige and curately evident osed plan different oroject brief. e shows a trated use accuracy me. It is to the f core of to justify Clear links research rated osed plan rate. are logical nensive oning with the		e and core ly applied and sistently proposed ons between ore knowledge exploited to uments and nderstanding the brief. The vs a high level curacy which sistently re links to the core d core skills are vely justify and rehensive horough and rom research ted through and are curate. re logical with e lines of ughout with nts of the brief	AO2b	

There is a brief attempt to collate information and to demonstrate project planning skills. The approach does not always follow a logical	There is an attempt to collate information and to demonstrate project planning skills. The approach attempts to follow a logical approach and is mostly clear.	The approach to the collation of information and project planning is clearly planned and organised. A logical approach is adopted, but with some limitations	There is clear evidence of a methodical and thorough approach to the collation of information and project planning throughout the task. A logical and well-structured approach is adopted.	
approach and may lack clarity. The information provided in relation to the project planning is not always clear in approach.	The information provided in relation to the project planning follows a mostly coherent approach but lacks clarity.	in structure. The information provided in relation to the project planning follows a coherent approach and shows clarity.	The information provided is comprehensive and follows a fully coherent approach, with a high degree of clarity.	

Task 1.4 – Presentation

Indicative content

Typical evidence may include:

Content

- Detail is provided about the chosen technology solution and how the digital technology solution chosen is the best solution for the charity organisation. The response is based on details provided in the project brief about the charity's aims and objectives for the future, including any applicable regulations specific to the charity sector.
- Expected impacts of the chosen technology solution, both short and long term
- The ways that the technology solution will support the quality of communication across stakeholders, including how alignment of the solution with will support improved engagement and collaboration
- Recommendation for proposed technology solution and how the solution will add value for money for the charity based on its current position, successfully showing influencing and negotiation in the evidence collated and presented.
- Detail of delivery for the project plan including allocation of resources, making use of specialised planning tools and techniques for the monitoring and control of the project budget and clearly defining timescales of key project deliverables in order to persuade the charity Trustees that the project will be a success.
- Expected improvement in engagement and collaboration including the quality of the communication for the charity, and why this solution will offer this to the organisation including details of potential future benefits to the organisation.
- Information relating to budget restriction and limitations for use of digital technologies including applicable GDPR/legal regulations, internal policies for use of social media and relevant conduct, environmental/financial/ethical impacts and how each would be a challenge to the charity organisation.
- Evidence of how objectives outlined in the business case have been met using evidence detailed in project planning which focused on meeting the charity organisation's current needs and future aims. Evidence of why this proposed technology solution meets all of the objectives outlined in the business case and persuade the charity Trustees why it should be implemented.

- Evidence of effective communication and information skills in the presentation tailored to the audience in line with the business need and project brief, with a credible and logical structure.
- Evidence of effective visual communication through the use of digital aids such as slides.

• Evidence of answering questions by relating their evidence back to what they have presented and seeking clarification from the questioner if needed.

Guidance for markers

The following evidence must be used to assess performance against this task.

- Presentation materials
- Video of presentation

Note: where there is insufficient evidence to award a mark, a zero mark may be given	Band 1 de	escriptor		Band 2 de	escripto	•	Band 3 descriptor			AO	Total marks available
Task 1.4	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	AO2a	9
Presentation	core skills be evidenced the content is lim and core skills show some in relation to the in response. Evidence of skills used to content. The consideration communicate Limited links application of core skills to judgements presentation questions as gaps or inact with requirer fully conside. There is evid approach to been gathered requirements.	are made to f core knowled justify and some detailed in the and response sked, but with curacies in response	or inted inted inted inted inted inted inted inted inted interest interest interest interest interest inted inted inted inted interest inted interest inted inted inted interest inted interest inted interest inted interest int	Evidence of skills is well-applied and or presented corresponse to a communication deliver presented approach to the time. Clear and according application or core skills are presentation questions as logical with a communication or core skills are presentation questions as logical with a communication or core skills are presentation questions as logical with a communication or core skills are presentation questions as logical with a communication or communicat	demonstrate vident this portent and questions the use of on skills use the defeation of the defeat of and responsible to the considered with required and presented of the dered, with the dered of th	good sed to ent. There of structure bry, with the dent most state to the wledge and through the brises to ements are reasoning ements of ered. logical mation has seented. e brief are in the	Evidence of and skills is evident conthrough the and in responses the strengthen demonstrat through pread in responses tructure and in responses through of accurate line application and core skithrough the responses through the response	applied a presente onse to questions of core known argument e underst sented conse to the sked. If the use sive tion skills exploid approach applied of applied detailed a ks to the of core known are logical are logical are logical are served are logical are served are logical are served are logical are served are logical are logical are served are logical are logical are served are logical are logic	and ively ed content uestions between owledge ited to ts and tanding ontent ne of sused to ntent. The ach to idered d in owledge vident ation and ons asked. cal with	AO2b	

be some gaps evident in information	The level of information presented	reasoning provided	
presented.	is detailed, with some clear	throughout with the	
	rationale and explanations	requirements of the brief fully	
The level of information presented is	provided on approach taken	considered.	
basic, with some basic explanation	within the presented content and		
provided on the approach taken	response to the questions asked.	There is evidence of a logical,	
within the presented content and		detailed and methodological	
response to the questions asked.		approach to how information	
100		has been gathered and	
		presented. The requirements	
		of the brief are fully	
		considered. The information	
		presented shows a high-level	
		of clarity and accuracy.	
		or clarity and accuracy.	
		The level of information	
		presented is comprehensive,	
		with coherent rationale and	
		explanations provided on	
		approach within the presented	
		content and response to the	
		questions asked.	
		questions asked.	

Note: where there is insufficient evidence to award a mark, a zero mark may be given	Band 1 descrip		Band 2 descript	or	Band 3 descriptor		Band 4 descriptor		Band 5 descriptor		AO	Total marks available
Task 1.4	1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	AO4b	10
Presentation	The prescontent is community audie limited of the language content, inaccuranted.	s icated to ence with arity. limited of the chnical and with	The prese content is communic clearly. The some evid the use of language a content, but lack relevation presentation.	mostly ated ere is ence of technical and ut it may ance to the	The preser content is communicated clearly. The technical late and content accurate an relevant to presentation	ated e use of inguage t is nd mostly the	The preser content is communicated and cohere use of tech language is and detailed relevant to presentation	ated clearly ently. The inical s accurate ed and is the	The prese content is communic clearly and coherently well-consideration approached intended to the audient use of technical details used effect support just that enhart presentations.	ated d through dered and es o engage ace. The annical is accurate ed and is etively to dgements ace the	AO4c	

 Limited	Communication	Communication skills	Communication skills	Communication	
communication	skills of active	of active listening,	of active listening,	skills of active	
skills of active	listening, checking	checking	checking	listening, checking	
listening,	understanding of	understanding of	understanding of	understanding of	
checking	question asked and	question asked and	question asked and	question asked and	
understanding of	checking for	checking for	checking for	checking for	
question asked	sufficiency of answer	sufficiency of answer	sufficiency of answer	sufficiency of answer	
and checking for	provided are used	provided are used	provided are used	provided are used	
sufficiency of	with some	effectively when	effectively when	comprehensively	
answer provided	effectiveness when	responding to	responding to	when responding to	
are presented	responding to	questions after the	questions after the	questions after the	
during the	questions after the	presentation.	presentation.	presentation.	
response to	presentation. There	Communication is	Communication is	Communication is	
questions after	is some	attempted to be	tailored to engage	optimally tailored to	
the presentation.	consideration of	tailored to engage	successfully with the	engage successfully	
There is limited	tailoring	with the audience.	audience.	with the audience	
evidence of	communication with			and persuade them	
tailoring	the audience.		Presentation created	of their approach.	
communication		Presentation created	and presented		
with the	Presentation created	and presented with a	effectively with the	Presentation created	
audience.	and presented using	good use of digital	thorough use of	and presented in an	
	some digital	technology skills, with	digital technology	optimal way using	
Limited digital	technology skills.	some effectiveness.	skills. Digital	advanced digital	
technology skills	Digital technology	Digital technology	technology skills are	technology skills.	
are used to	skills mostly support	skills are used to	used to effectively	Digital technology	
create and	the clarity of the	provide clarity and	provide clarity and	skills are used to	
present a basic	information	coherence to the	coherence to the	optimise the clarity	
presentation. The	presented.	presentation, mostly	presentation.	and coherence of	
presentation		effectively.		the presentation.	
lacks coherence.					

Task 2.1 - Collaborative Problem solving

Indicative content

Typical evidence may include:

Content

- Details about the issue the charity is currently facing with the social media campaign and internet trolling.
- Detail of expected impacts and what this means in terms of image and staff well-being for the charity organisation.
- Detail of how to mitigate the risk associated with possible action. This will either include details of the two proposed solutions put forward by the charity organisation as detailed in the task or detail another proposed solution.
- Detail around the types of information that will be needed to implement the solution.
- Recommendation for proposed solution and how the solution will successfully influence outcomes and solve the issue for the charity organisation.
- Details of why the proposed solution is the most suitable and should be implemented by the charity Trustees.
- Detail around how this will be communicated effectively to all stakeholders.
- Consideration of risks or impacts of implementing this solution for the charity organisation.

Skills

- Evidence of communication in discussion and collaborative skills used to engage.
- Evidence of effective problem solving and decision making.
- Evidence of using information flow to present findings coherently to an audience.

Guidance for markers

The following evidence must be used to assess performance against this task.

- Written discussion notes
- Video recording of discussions
- Advisory note
- Social media message

Note, where guidance has been provided on an approximate word count for the Advisory note, this is for guidance to learners only. There is not a requirement to award marks based on the word count, but instead the response should be marked based on the quality of response. The social media message has a character limit of 280 characters, which must be adhered to.

Note: where there is insufficient evidence to award a mark, a zero mark may be given	Band 1 des	criptor	Band 2 descr	iptor	Band 3 descr	iptor	AO	Total marks available
Task 2.1	1	2	3	4	5	6	AO1	6
Collaborative Problem- solving	There is a limit evident to plantask. The task considered in a detail. Some ideas are considered. A lof advantages disadvantages for solutions prwith limited just provided. There is limited core knowledger relation to the production.	ning for the brief has been a basic level of be briefly imited number or are considered esented, but tification	The approach to task is mostly we shows a mostly lot. The task brief has in some detail. A range of ideas a some detail. Advadisadvantages are each solution presome justification attempts to show would support the Core knowledge is specifically evided demonstrate under proposed solution	are considered in antages and e considered for sented, with provided that how the solution e response.	detail. A comprehensive are considered ir advantages and considered for eapresented, with cand reasoning properties with easily support the responsive properties.	e range of ideas of detail. A range of disadvantages are each solution clear justification covided to reflect ation would onse. is applied with even elements of exploited to nents and	AO2a	

Note: where there is insufficient evidence to award a mark, a zero mark may be given	Band 1 desc	criptor	Band 2 descri	iptor	Band 3 descr	iptor	AO	Total marks available
Task 2.1 Collaborative Problem-solving	Some active co made to discus may lack logica argument. Idea may lack some accuracy and o limit progress o Communication always appropr speak over othe engagement wi low again impa- progress of the	sion although al structure of s put forward technical n occasions f the task. n skills were not iate and would ers or levels of th others was cting on	Actively contribute task to discussion proposed in solvin were relevant, log correct and thoug of the time so prowas made but no Communication s appropriate and a the time with a windiscuss some det contributions that progress in the tax	ns. Solutions any the task issue gical, technically the through most gress in the task t always timely. kills are are clear most of llingness to ails in other's supports	Levels of contribution discussions were all points of the tar and responses to problem were log and well thought. Technical information accurate, resulting timely progress but the communication is developed and cliquestions of othe that brings about	high throughout task. Contributions solving the ical, methodical, through. It is a solving the ical of the ical, methodical, through the ical of the i	AO2b	6
	There is limited core skills evide relation to the p solution.	enced in	engagement with generally consists Core skills are ap specifically evider demonstrate under proposed solution	ent throughout. plied and nced to erstanding of the	supports effective task. Levels of en high with an indict to take the lead the measured way. Core skills are coapplied with connelements of core strengthen argumdemonstrate under relation to the pro-	gagement are ation of wanting aroughout but in a mprehensively ections between skills exploited to the ents and erstanding in		

Task 2.2 – Evaluation

Indicative content

Typical evidence may include:

Content

- Reflection on effectiveness and success of responses across project tasks
- Considered analysis and evaluation of project outcomes and detail of whether all project outcomes were achieved.
- Evaluation of project brief documents showing knowledge of the full project lifecycle including its closure phase.
- Lessons learned An evaluation of task responses indicating what was successful and the reasons why, and what different steps may be taken next time to make future projects more successful.
- Evaluation and self-reflection of own abilities to manage project objectives and outcomes, including detail of how the chosen proposed technology solution and project planning for its implementation met the requirements of the charity organisation as detailed in the project brief.

Skills

- Effectively evaluate own performance and behaviours
- Ability to be able to reflect on own experience and articulate what they have learnt

Guidance for markers

The following evidence must be used to assess performance against this task.

• Written summary statement

Note, where guidance has been provided on an approximate word count for the written summary statement, this is for guidance to learners only. There is not a requirement to award marks based on the word count, but instead the response should be marked based on the quality of response.

Note: where there is insufficient evidence to award a mark, a zero mark may be given	Band desc	d 1 cripto	r	Band desc	riptor		Band 3 descriptor			Band 4 descriptor			Band 5 descriptor			AO	Total marks available
Task 2.2 Evaluation	made the provide the browns outcome the provide the provide the provide the region of the limited	me. Br nentary led to s ief was t met. detail is led on	luate ief is state if s or how ked to hents with a hpt to	addres well the outcon achiev an atter provide reason justification was much be the brief the brief well and the received	valuation is ses how e project ne was ed. The empt to e some ning and ation as ell the bet. provided e project ne linked quirement with session outlined.	to rief d on ct d to nts of come	detailed address the prowas and further elevel of address and	valuation ed and sses horoject our chieved is a good freason stification ed on hosefully the provide me project me linked quirement ef with the explains explains	w well tcome . od ning on ow he vas d on ct ed to ents of	The evadetailed specification with the outcome. There is level of justification with the effective approach. Detail puthe projlinked to require brief with explanar reasons.	and ally addid the properties was acted to the provided extra to the provided extra to the press of the press	resses bject chieved. ugh ng and vided on y the s met, of the on how ome	compreispecification with a formal compreispecification of the project of the pro	reasoning ition provided the provided outcome and the provided of the provided	esses ect he brief. ehensive g and ded that es how was met, if he n how me linked ints of the in letail,	AO2b AO5a AO5b	15

A brief attempt is made to reflect on own personal performance and behaviours. There is limited consideration of any lessons learnt.	Some self- reflection points on own personal performance and behaviours are evident within the evaluation, with some attempt to link performance with lessons learned.	A good overview of self-reflection on own personal performance and behaviours and learnings from the task are evident through the evaluation, with links articulated between performance and lessons learned.	A thorough overview of self-reflection on personal performance and behaviours and learnings from the task are evident through the evaluation, with links articulated between performance and lessons learned, with suggestions on how different steps may be taken in future projects.	A comprehensive overview of self-reflection on personal performance and behaviours is evident through the evaluation and link clearly and coherently to the project outcome with links articulated between performance and lessons learned, that effectively detail how different steps may be taken on future projects and why.		
--	--	---	--	--	--	--



The T Level is a qualification approved and managed by the Institute for Apprenticeships and Technical Education.

Copyright in this document belongs to, and is used under licence from, the Institute for Apprenticeships and Technical Education, © 2021. 'T-LEVELS' is a registered trademark of the Department for Education. 'T Level' is a registered trademark of the Institute for Apprenticeships and Technical Education. 'Institute for Apprenticeships & Technical Education' and logo are registered trademarks of the Institute for Apprenticeships and Technical Education.

We make every effort to ensure that the information contained in this publication is true and correct at the time of going to press. However, City & Guilds' products and services are subject to continuous development and improvement, and the right is reserved to change products and services from time to time. City & Guilds cannot accept responsibility for any loss or damage arising from the use of information in this publication.

The City & Guilds of London Institute. All rights reserved. City & Guilds is a trademark of the City & Guilds of London Institute, a charity established to promote education and training registered in England & Wales (312832) and Scotland (SC039576). City and Guilds Group Giltspur House, 5-6 Giltspur Street London EC1A 9DE.

